The City of Snellville

2342 Oak Road

Snellville, Georgia 30078

(770) 985-3500 + FAX (770) 985-3525

AGENDA

TIME:

DATE:

WORK SESSION
OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
MONDAY, AUGUST 11, 2025

Publication Date: August 7, 2025
6:30 p.m.

August 11, 2025

PLACE: City Hall Conference Room 145

I.

IL.

IIL

IV.

VI.

VIIL

CALL TO ORDER

REVIEW REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA
ITEMS

REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT
DISCUSSION ITEMS

a) Updates to the Snellville Youth Commission [Lenski]
b) Update of Ongoing Projects [Bender]

EXECUTIVE SESSION

An Executive Session may be called:

e To discuss pending and/or potential litigation, settlement claims, administrative proceedings or other
judicial actions, which is exempt from the Open Meetings Act pursuant to O.C.G.A. Section 50-14-2(1).

e To authorize negotiations to purchase, dispose of, or lease property; authorize the ordering of an
appraisal related to the acquisition or disposal of real estate; enter into a contract to purchase, dispose of,
or lease property subject to approval in a subsequent public vote; or enter into an option to purchase,
dispose of, or lease real estate subject to approval in subsequent public vote, which is excluded from the
Open Meetings Act pursuant to Section 50-14-3(b)(1)(C).

«  Upon the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, disciplinary action or dismissal, or periodic
evaluation or rating of a public officer or employee, which is excluded pursuant to O. .C.G.A. Section 50-
14-3(b)(2).

ADJOURNMENT

Persons With Hearing Or Speech Disabilities Who Need To Contact The City Of Snellville May Place Their Call Through The
Georgia Relay Center At (800) 255-0056 (Text Telephone) Or (800) 255-0135 (Voice Telephone).



The City of Sneliville

2342 Oak Road

Snellville, Georgia 30078

(770) 985-3500 « FAX (770) 985-3525

AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING
OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
MONDAY, AUGUST 11, 2025

Publication Date: August 7, 2025

TIME: 7:30 p.m.

DATE: August 11, 2025

PLACE: Council Chambers

I

I1.

111

IV.

V.

VL

VIL

VIII.

IX.

a)
b)

CALL TO ORDER
INVOCATION

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG
CEREMONIAL MATTERS

MINUTES
Approve the Minutes of the July 28, 2025 Meetings

INVITED GUESTS

COMMITTEE / DEPARTMENT REPORTS
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARING

Provide Citizens the Opportunity to Submit Written and Oral Comments on the Proposed

2025 Millage Rate
1t Reading - RZ 25-05 - Consideration and Action on Application by DeThomas

Investments, LLC (Applicant) and Tree Lane Development, LLC (Property Owner)
Requesting to Amend the Official Zoning Map from BG (General Business) District to
R-TH (Townhouse Residential) District and Variances from the Snellville Unified
Development Ordinance for a 108-Unit Single-Family (Attached) Townhome Development
on a 15.0137+ Acre Site with a Gross Density Of 7.19 Units Per Acre Located on Tree Ln
at 1719 Scenic Highway (SR 124 N). Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel 5056 003)

Persons With Heariqg Or Speech Disabilities Who Need To Contact The City Of Snellville May Place Their Call Through The
Georgia Relay Center At (800) 255-0056 (Text Telephone) Or (800) 255-0135 (Voice Telephone).



PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, AUGUST 11, 2025
PAGE TWO

X. CONSENT AGENDA (Please see *Note)
a) Approval of Opioid Settlement Agreement

XI. OLD BUSINESS

XII. NEW BUSINESS
a) Consideration and Action on Approval of Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Subrecipient Agreement for the Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Community Center

Funds [Bender]

XIII. COUNCIL REPORTS
XIV. MAYOR’S REPORT

XV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

e Section 2-53
Each member of the public who wishes to address the Mayor and City Council in public
session must submit their name, address and the topic (be as specific as possible) of their
comments to the City Clerk prior to making such comments. Individuals will be allotted five
minutes to make their comments and such comments must be limited to the chosen topic.
Members of the public shall not make inappropriate or offensive comments at a City Council
meeting and are expected to comply with our adopted rules of decorum.

e Decorum
You must conduct yourself in a professional and respectful manner. All remarks should be
directed to the Chairman and not to individual Council Members, staff or citizens in
attendance. Personal remarks are inappropriate.

XVI. EXECUTIVE SESSION

An Executive Session may be called:

e To discuss pending and/or potential litigation, settlement claims, administrative proceedings
or other judicial actions, which is exempt from the Open Meetings Act pursuant to O.C.G.A.
Section 50-14-2(1).

¢ To authorize negotiations to purchase, dispose of, or lease property; authorize the ordering of
an appraisal related to the acquisition or disposal of real estate; enter into a contract to
purchase, dispose of, or lease property subject to approval in a subsequent public vote; or
enter into an option to purchase, dispose of, or lease real estate subject to approval in
subsequent public vote, which is excluded from the Open Meetings Act pursuant to Section
50-14-3(b)(1)(C).

e Upon the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, disciplinary action or dismissal,
or periodic evaluation or rating of a public officer or employee, which is excluded pursuant to
0.C.G.A. Section 50-14-3(b)(2).

XVII. ADJOURNMENT

*Note: Items on the Consent Agenda may be read by title only. Upon the request of any Council
Member, any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda
prior to the adoption of the Regular Agenda. The Consent Agenda, or the remainder thereof
omitting the challenged items, shall be adopted by unanimous consent.



CITY OF SNELLVILLE
MEETINGS AND LOCAL EVENTS
AUGUST 11, 2025

August 11

Council Meeting

Monday, August 11, 2025

6:30 p.m. Work Session — Conference Room 145, City Hall
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall

August 17

Broadcast of August 11, 2025 Council Meeting

Sunday, August 17, 2025

Watch the broadcast on Comcast Channel 25 at 6:30 pm

August 18-20

Qualifying for the Municipal Election

Monday — Wednesday — August 18 thru 20, 2025
8:30 a.m. until 4:30 p.m. each day

City Hall

August 20

Downtown Development Authority Meeting
Wednesday, August 20, 2025

4:30 p.m. — 2" Floor Conference Room 259

August 21

Downtown Tunes — Free Concert at The Grove
Thursday, August 21

6:00 p.m. -9:00 p.m.

The Grove at Towne Center

August 23

Live on the Lawn Concert Series
Saturday, August 23

6:00 p.m. -9:00 p.m.

Towne Greene

August 25

Council Meeting

Monday, August 25, 2025

6:30 p.m. Work Session — Conference Room 145, City Hall
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall

August 26

Planning Commission Meeting

Tuesday, August 26, 2025

7:00 pm Work Session — Conference Room 145, City Hall
7:30 pm Meeting - Council Chambers, City Hall



https://www.snellville.org/broadcast-of-11320-council-meeting-2020-01-19

WORK SESSION
OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025

Present: Mayor Barbara Bender, Mayor Pro Tem Tod Warner, Council Members Norman A.
Carter Jr., Kerry Hetherington, Cristy Lenski, and Gretchen Schulz. Also present City Manager
Matthew Pepper, Assistant City Manager Mercy Montgomery, City Attorney Jay Crowley with
Powell and Crowley, Chief Greg Perry, Planning and Development Director Jason Thompson, and
City Clerk Melisa Arnold.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Bender called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

REVIEW REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA
ITEMS

Planning Director Thompson reviewed SUP 25-02 and 25-03 with the Mayor and Council.
During discussion of SUP 25-02, the storage building on Pharrs Road, Planning Director
Thompson said they recommended denial of the variance regarding EIFS (Exterior Insulation
and Finish System) installation. Brief discussion followed on the remaining agenda items.

REVIEW CORRESPONDENCE
Mayor Bender reminded everyone about some upcoming business events and ribbon cuttings.

CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT
Attorney Crowley said an Executive Session is needed.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Update of Ongoing Projects [Bender]

City Manager Pepper talked about a draft policy and application for special event requests at The
Grove. After discussion the consensus was to move forward with the drafts and to email the
application to the Mayor and Council for review. He continued his update with the status of the
restaurants and other projects.

City Manager Pepper talked about a drone delivery program that Walmart may roll out and
upcoming millage rate hearings.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
Mayor Bender read the closed meeting notice into the record as follows:
e To discuss pending and/or potential litigation, settlement claims, administrative proceedings

or other judicial actions, which is exempt from the Open Meetings Act pursuant to O.C.G.A.
Section 50-14-2(1).

City of Snellville Administration Department
2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078 770-985-3500 770-985-3525 Fax www.snellville.org



j

WORK SESSION OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025
PAGETWO

¢ Upon the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, disciplinary action or dismissal, or
periodic evaluation or rating of a public officer or employee, which is excluded pursuant to
0.C.G.A. Section 50-14-3(b)(2).

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Warner, 2" by Council Member Schulz, the meeting was

closed, with all Council Members and the Mayor present and voting in favor.

The meeting was closed at 7:06 p.m.

The meeting reconvened at 7:22 p.m,

ADJOURNMENT
Mayor Pro Tem Warner made a motion to adjourn, 2™ by Council Member Carter; voted 6 in
favor and 0 opposed, motion approved. The meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m.

Barbara Bender, Mayor

Melisa Arnold, City Clerk




PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING
OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025

Present: Mayor Barbara Bender, Mayor Pro Tem Tod Warner, Council Members Norman A.
Carter Jr., Kerry Hetherington, Cristy Lenski, and Gretchen Schulz. Also present City Manager
Matthew Pepper, Assistant City Manager Mercy Montgomery, City Attorney Jay Crowley with
Powell and Crowley, Chief Greg Perry, Planning and Development Director Jason Thompson, IT
Administrator Erika Fleeman and City Clerk Melisa Arnold.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Bender called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m.

INVOCATION
Bobby Howard gave the invocation.

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG
Chief Perry led the Pledge of Allegiance.

CEREMONIAL MATTERS
None

MINUTES

Approve the Minutes of the July 14, 2025 Meetings

Mayor Pro Tem Warner made a motion to approve the minutes of the July 14™ meetings, 2" by
Council Member Hetherington; voted 6 in favor and 0 opposed, motion approved.

INVITED GUESTS

Laura Drake, CEO of Southeast Gwinnett Cooperative Ministry
Ms. Drake spoke about the history and services of the Cooperative.

COMMITTEE / DEPARTMENT REPORTS
None

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
Council Member Lenski made a motion to approve the agenda, 2" by Council Member Carter;
voted 6 in favor and 0 opposed, motion approved.

City of Snellville Administration Department
2342 Oak Road  Snellville, GA 30078 770-985-3500 770-985-3525 Fax www.snellville.org



PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025
PAGE TWO

PUBLIC HEARING

2% Reading - SUP 25-02 — Consideration and Action on application by Park Place Snellville,
LLC requesting to renew a Special Use Permit approved in Nov. 2022 (case #SUP 22-06) fora
3-story, 102,000 sq. ft. climate controlled self-storage facility on the 1.82 acre site, zoned HSB
(Highway Service Business) District located in the Park Place commercial development, 1915
Pharrs Road, Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcel 5056 362)

Planning Director Thompson gave an overview of the application. He advised that the Planning
Department recommends approval of the conditions and denial of the variance request. He then
answered questions from Council about the application.

Jack Wilson, 295 South Culver St, Suite C, Lawrenceville was present representing the
applicant. He spoke about the application and stated their agreement to the conditions and to
completing the missing section of sidewalk.

Mayor Bender opened the floor to anyone who wished to speak in favor of the development and
no one came forward.

She then opened the floor to public comment for anyone in opposition to the development.

Gaye Bruce, 1710 Woodberry Run Drive, Snellville spoke about her concerns with the address,
lack of street signs, and the location of the building.

Rev. Varlyna Wright, 1753 Glenwood Way, Snellville spoke about her concerns regarding the
need for something that creates more jobs and how long the project will take to complete.
Stewart Ewing, 1705 Woodberry Run Drive, Sneliville stated that he didn’t think the project had
been thought through very well.

No one else came forward so Mayor Bender closed public comment.

Jack Wilson came forward and addressed concerns brought up during public comment.

Council Member Lenski made a motion to approve SUP 25-02 with “reference to ORD 2025-15
with staff recommended conditions and the addition of a condition 6 to read as follows: The
applicant shall complete the construction of the additional six (6) feet of missing sidewalk in the
Park Place complex, 2™ by Council Member Cartet.

After discussion Mayor Pro Tem Warner asked if Council Member Lenski would amend her
motion to include a condition 7 as follows: The applicant will request from Gwinnett County to
name the street Tree Lane and upon approval by Gwinnett County install street signage.

Council Member Lenski agreed to amend her motion to include condition 7.

The motion was voted 5 in favor and 1 opposed with Mayor Bender casting the opposing vote;
motion approved with the following 7 conditions:

1. All variances and conditions applicable to the subject property and previously approved on

7-10-2017 by the Mayor and Council for case #RZ 17-06 LUP 17-04 are hereby repealed.




PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025
PAGE THREE

2. The property shall be developed in general accordance with the conceptual site plan entitled
“Special Use Permit Site Plan Snellville Self Storage”, dated 2-14-2025 (stamped received
APR 11 2025) and attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, with modifications permiited to meet
conditions of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the
conceptual rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and Development
will require Mayor and Council approval, after receiving recommendations by the Planning
Department and Planning Commissiomn.

3. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult magazines, books,
videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment Ordinance in effect on the date this
condition is imposed, are prohibited.

4. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited.

5. This special use permit shall sunset 24 months from the date of approval unless a
certificate of occupancy or occupational tax license was approved and issued for the
use.

6. The applicant shall complete the construction of the additional approximately six (6) feet
(more or less) of missing sidewalk in the Park Place complex

7. The applicant will request from Gwinnett County to name the sireet Tree Lane and upon
approval by Gwinnett County install sireet signage in the appropriate places.

(A copy of ORD 2025-15 is attached to and made a part of these minutes.)

21 Reading - SUP 25-03 — Consideration and Action on_application by 2440 Eastgate Place,
LLC requesting a Special Use Permit for an indoor sports facility and variances from the
Snellville Unified Development for an existing 12,000 sq. fi. building and adjacent undeyeloped
lot on a combined 1.72 acre site, zoned BG (General Business) District and Jocated in the TCOQ
(Towne Center Overlay) District, 2430-2440 Eastgate Place. Snellville, Georgia (Tax Parcels
5038 155 and 5038 156)

Planning Director Thompson gave an overview of the application. He advised that additional
parking is needed however the property falls in the Town Center Overlay District so a Special
Use Permit is needed. He advised that the Planning Department recommends approval of the
conditions and variances 1 through 3. He advised that the Planning Department can work with
the applicant on approved tree plantings so they recommend denial of variance 4.

Beau Cone, Land Solution Associates, 410 Sequoia Iills Lane, Clayton was present representing
the applicant 2440 Eastgate Place LLC and the tenant Evolution Sports. He spoke briefly about
the application.

Mayor Bender opened the floor to anyone who wished to speak in favor of the development and
the following people came forward:

Ron Weaver, 2043 Ellsberry Street spoke about the positive impact of Evolution Sports.

Mariah Pasture — 3858 Elm Trace Drive, Loganville spoke about how Evolution Sports helped
her and other teens involved in the program.

Richard Wright, 2767 Delmore Drive spoke about the quality of the programs.




PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025
PAGE FOUR

Rev. Varlyna Wright, 1753 Glenwood Way, Snellville spoke in favor of the application,

Noah Yousef- 763 Hawthorn Lane, Grayson spoke about the different offerings of the program
and the need for the additional parking.

Melanie Buckhalter, 2158 Eastwood Drive, Snellville spoke about the bencficial impact of
Evolution Sports on her son.

No one else came forward so Mayor Bender closed public comment for those in favor and then
opened the floor to public comment for anyone in opposition to the development,

No one came forward in opposition so Mayor Bender closed public comment.

Council Member Lenski made a motion to approve SUP 25-03 with reference to ORD 2025-16
with staff recommended conditions and variances 1 through 3 and denial of variance 4, 2" by
Council Member Schulz, voted 6 in favor and 0 opposed, motion approved with the following
conditions and variances:

Conditions:

1. The property shall be developed in general accordance with the parking addition site plan

entitled “Evolution Sports Complex Parking Addition”, dated 4-3-2025 (stamped received
APR 15 2025 and attached hereto as Exhibit “A”), with modifications permitted to meet
conditions of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the
conceptual rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and
Development  will  requite Mayor and Council approval, after receiving
recommendations by the Planning Department and Planning Commission,

2. The parking lot, stormwater management, and landscaping improvements made to 2430
Eastgate Place (Parcel 5038 156) shall not trigger the Substantial Building Permit
requirements for 2440 Eastgate Place (Parcel 5038 155).

3. Customer and employee parking within the Eastgate Place right-of-way is prohibited at all
times.

4. Shrubs and other approved plantings are required to be planted within the sanitary sewer
and overhead utility casement along the northeastern property line approximately 125
feet whete adjacent to the proposed parking area.

5. In lieu of implementing the required streetscape improvements along the Eastgate
Place right-of-way adjacent to parcels 5038 155 and 5038 156, property owner shall
dedicate at no cost to the City of Snellville the required right-of-way for future
strectscape improvements made by the City of Snellville for the Hugh Drive extension.

6. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult magazines, books,
videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment Ordinance in effect on the date
this condition is imposed, are prohibited.

7. Signs higher than 15 feet or larger than 225 square feet are prohibited.

8. All work shall be commenced within twelve months of this Ordinance approval.




PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025
PAGE FIVE

Variances:

1. Variance from Table 207-1.2.B. (Vehicle Parking Requirements): to reduce the minimum
required onsite parking spaces from 57 spaces to 34 spaces.

2. Variance from Sec. 206-1.6. (Space Limits) to increase the 10 feet maximum front
yard building setback to 63 feet to allow the existing building to remain in its current
location.

3. Variance from Seec. 207-3.2 (Landscape Strip) to eliminate the 5-feet minimum depth
landscape strip along the northeastern property line due to existing overhead utility and
sanitary sewer easements.

(A copy of ORD 2025-16 is attached to and made a part of these minutes.)

CONSENT AGENDA
None

OLD BUSINESS
None

NEW BUSINESS

ond Reading — ORD 2025-14 - An Ordinance to Amend the Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance (Chapter
6); to Provide for and Amend Qrdinances Related to Outside Consumption of Alcohol: to Provide

Severability: to Repeal Conflicting Ordinances; to_Provide an Effective Date; and for Other
Purposes [Bender]

Mayor Bender explained that this amendment will clarify certain things within the Entertainment
District.

Council Member Schulz made a motion to approve ORD 2025-147, 2™ by Council Member
Hetherington; voted 6 in favor and 0 opposed, motion approved. (A copy of ORD 2025-14 is
attached to and made a part of these minutes.)

Consideration and Action on RES 2025-10 — Expansion of the Entertainment District Boundaries
[Bender]

Mayor Bender explained that this will adjust the boundaries of the Entertainment District to allow
for open catry of alcoholic beverages under certain conditions.

Council Member Lenski made a motion to approve RES 2025-10, 2™ by Mayor Pro Tem Warner;
voted 6 in favor and 0 opposed, motion approved. (A copy of RES 2025-10 is attached to and
made a part of these minutes.)

COUNCIL REPORTS
Council Members Carter, Hetherington, Lenski, Schulz and Mayor Pro Tem Warner each gave a
report.

MAYOR’S REPORT
Mayor Bender gave a report.




PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BUSINESS OF MAYOR AND COUNCIL
MONDAY, JULY 28, 2025
PAGE SIX

PUBLIC COMMENTS

The following person came forward to speak:
Gaye Bruce, 1710 Woodberry Run Drive, Snellville.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
None

ADJOURNMENT
Council Member Hetherington made a motion to adjourn, 2™ by Mayor Pro Tem Warner; voted
6 in favor and 0 opposed, motion approved. The meeting adjourned at 9:11 p.m.

Barbara Bender, Mayor

Melisa Arnold, City Clerk




CITY OF SNELLVILLE
2025 TAX DIGEST & MILLAGE RATE
COMPUTATIONS

Current Estimated 40% Digest = $1,595,000,000
One Mill = $1,595,000
(NOTE: 2024 Mill = $1,578,000)
Tk d bkt
Current Millage =4.00
Potential Income = $6,380,000*
dkkkhhhdkdk
Roll Back Millage = 3.93
Estimated Income = $6,265,160
dkkhhhhdkdk
Budgeted Income = $6,100,000
Staff Recommendation = Maintain 4.00 Mills

*Income will be affected by the passage of HB 581, and after all
appeals and County adjustments are subtracted.

(8-7-2025)



Agenda Item Summary

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

CASE:

STATUS:

The Mayor and Council

Jason Thompson, Director
Department of Planning and Development

August 11, 2025
#RZ 25-05 — 108-Unit Townhome Development at Tree Ln., Snellville

1%t Reading

Application by DeThomas Investments, LLC to amend the Official Zoning Map from BG (General
Business) District to R-TH (Townhouse Residential) District and variances from the UDO for a
15.01% acre site located on Tree Ln, behind 12 Stone Church for a 108-unit single-family
(attached) townhouse development with a gross density of 7.20 units per acre.

Financial Impact: Site Development Fees; Real Property Taxes;

and Stormwater Utility Fees

Planning Department Recommendation: Approval with Conditions

Planning Commission Meeting
And Recommendation: July 22, 2025 (Denial)

Mayor and Council Meetings: August 11, 2025 (1% Reading)

August 25, 2025 (2"d Reading & Public Hearing)

Action Requested: Consideration and Waive the 1 Reading

Draft Ordinance: Attached

Case Documents (website link):

Letter of Intent (6-10-2025)

#RZ 25-05 Rezoning Application (6-10-2025]

9-20-2005 Boundary Survey (6-10-2025)]

Sample Elevations and Floorplan (6-10-2025) |

Sample 6-Unit Front & Rear Elevation (6-10-2025) |

Sample Colored Front Elevation {6-10-2025] |

6-5-2025 Colored Conceptual Site Plan (Layout A) (6-10-2025) |

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078 770.985.3518 www.snellville.org


https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/letter-of-intent-with-variances-6-10-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/rz-25-05-rezoning-application-6-10-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/boundary-tree-lane-dev.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/pinewood-snellville-townhomes.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/amberwood_oakwood-elevations-six-unit-building.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/sample-colored-front-elevations.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/32658.0000-concept-a-6.5.2025.pdf

Case #RZ 25-05 — 108-Unit Townhome Development at Tree Ln., Snellville
August 11, 2025

Page... 2
# 3-25-2025 Conceptual Site Plan (Layout A) (6-10-2025) |
o 6-17-2025 Boundary Survey (6-18-2025)|
o Jul 22 2025 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis (/-16-2025) |
®  Unofficial July 22 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes (7-24-2025)|

[ Jul22 2025 Planning Commission Case Report (/-23-2025) |
e Jul'2Z3 2025 Planning Department Case Summary & Analysis with Planning
Commission Report (7-24-2025)



https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/32658.0000-site-layout-a-060525.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/survey-2623.93sv_20250617.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/rz-25-05-staff-report-7-16-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/pc-case-report-rz-25-05-7-23-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/sites/default/files/uploads/planning-development/documents/2025%20Agenda%20Packet/RZ%2025-05/rz-25-05-staff-report-7-23-2025.pdf
https://www.snellville.org/agendas-minutes

STATE OF GEORGIA

CITY OF SNELLVILLE

ORDINANCE 2025-17

AN ORDINANCE TO GRANT THE APPLICATION AMEND THE OFFICIAL
ZONING MAP FROM BG (GENERAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT TO R-TH
(TOWNHOUSE RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT FOR A 108-UNIT SINGLE-FAMILY
(ATTACHED) TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT WITH A GROSS DENSITY OF 7.20
UNITS PER ACRE ON 15.01+ ACRES SITUATED ALONG TREE LANE AND
ADDITIONAL RELATED VARIANCES.

CASE NUMBER: #RZ 25-05
APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER: DeThomas Investments, LLC (Applicant)

Tree Lane Development, LLC (Owner)

LOCATION: Tree Lane behind 12 Stone Church
TAX PARCEL: R5056 003
VARIANCES REQUESTED: 1.Variance from Sec. 401

3.4.B. (Vehicular Access): to eliminate the
vehicular access requirement to the

undeveloped 15+ acre adjoining parcel to
the north (Parcel 5056 004).

2.Variance from Sec. 401-

5.3.C. (Local Streets and Minor Arterials or
Collectors): to allow a hammerhead street
termination in lieu of a cul-de-sac
turnaround for “deadend” Street “B”.

3.Variance from Sec. 202 6.6. (Dimensional
Standards — Site Setback): to waive the mini
mum 50-feet site setback (along

streets) and waive the minimum 40-

feet site setback (not along streets).

4.Variance from Sec. 201-2.6. (Townhome

Building Type): to allow front-entry
townhomes for units 73-92.

ORD 2025-17 Page 1 of 7



5.Variance from Sec. 202-6.9.F. (R-

TH Design Standards): to allow

front-entry townhomes for units 73-92.
6.Variance from Sec. 201-1.6.D.1.
(Driveways): to increase the 35% maximum
front yard area for driveways or authorized
onsite parking to 67%.

7.Variance from Sec. 401-5.11.C.
(Horizontal Street Alignment): to reduce the
minimum horizontal street curve radius for a
local street from 81-feet to 50-feet.
DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Tree Lane Townhomes
WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor
and Council thereof; and
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Mayor and Council on August
25, 2025.
WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia,
will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore:
IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:
Section 1. For reasons stated in the public hearing, the council hereby grants
the application to amend the Official Zoning Map for Tax Parcel 5056 003 from BG to R-

TH with the following conditions:

1. The property shall be developed in accordance with the rezoning site plan entitled
“Conceptual Site Layout 1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 3-25-2025
(stamped received JUN 10 2025), with modifications permitted to meet conditions
of zoning or State, County, and City regulations. Substantial variation from the
rezoning site plan, as determined by the Director of Planning and Development will
require Mayor and Council approval.

ORD 2025-17 Page 2 of 7



2. A mandatory Homeowner’s Association shall be formed and incorporated within
the State of Georgia for all single family (detached) and (attached) lots in the
development and common areas. A rental cap of ten-percent (10%) of the total
number of lots at any given time for rentals greater than thirty (30) consecutive days
shall be placed on the development with such language being included in the
Homeowner’s Association Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions.

3. There shall be a 25-foot undisturbed buffer adjacent to Parcels 5056 070; 5041 055;
5041 054; 5041 053; 5041 105; and portion of 5056 002 as shown on the site plan
entitled “Conceptual Site Layout 1719 Scenic Hwy Snellville GA”, dated 3-25-
2025 (stamped received JUN 10 2025). A Landscaping Plan shall be provided for
areas within the 25-foot undisturbed buffer that are sparsely vegetated and/or
disturbed, to be approved by the Director of Planning and Development.

4. Inlieu of sidewalks required by the code on both sides of Street “A” and Street “B”,
a minimum 4-feet wide sidewalk with minimum 5-feet wide planter strip shall be
installed as shown on the site plan for Street “B”, with continuation of sidewalk and
planter strip along Street “B” between Unit 72 and Unit 108, with sidewalk
connection to the existing sidewalk at Tree Ln, with continuation of the Tree Ln
sidewalk 150+ feet to the west. To allow for the 22-feet minimum driveway length
measured from garage door to Street “B” back-of-curb for front-entry Units 73-92,
no sidewalk is required.

5. The Applicant/Developer shall comply with the Georgia Blasting Standards Act,
including pre-blast and post blast surveys for any structure within 750 feet of the
blast site or directly adjacent to subject property with advanced notice to any
affected property owner. The applicant will provide advanced notice of any blasting
to the following H.O.A. #RZ 25-05 — DeThomas Investments, LLC 15.01+ Acres
at Tree Ln (Behind 12 Stone Church) 1719 Scenic Highway, Snellville, Georgia
Page 12 of 12 Boards: Waterford Township and Shadowbrook Crossing. Before
blasting work begins, a blasting notification plan must be reviewed and approved
by the Planning and Development Department. Said plan shall include signage,
email notification, and any other notification deemed necessary.

6. Uses involving adult entertainment, including the sale or display of adult
magazines, books, videos and as further defined by the Adult Entertainment

Ordinance in effect on the date this condition is imposed, are prohibited.

7. Signs higher than 15 feet and larger than 225 sq. ft. in area are prohibited.

ORD 2025-17 Page 3 of 7



Section 2. In addition, the following variances are hereby approved or denied as

follows:

1. Approval of variance from Sec. 401-3.4.B. (Vehicular Access): to eliminate the
inter-parcel access requirement to the undeveloped 15+ acre adjoining parcel to the
north (Parcel 5056 004).

2. Denial of variance from Sec. 401-5.3.C. (Local Streets and Arterials or Collectors):
to allow a hammerhead street termination in lieu of a cul-de-sac turnaround for
“deadend” Street “B”.

3. Approval of variance from Sec. 202-6.6. (Dimensional Standards — Site Setback):
to waive the minimum 50-feet site setback (along streets) and waive the minimum
40-feet site setback (not along streets).

4. Approval of variance from Sec. 202-6.9.F. (R-TH Design Standards): to allow
front-entry townhomes for units 73-92. Applicant requested a similar variance per
Sec. 202-6.3. (Building Types), no building type requirements apply in the R-TH
District. Therefore, the requested variance under Sec. 202-6.3is not applicable to
the requested zoning.

5. Approval of variance from Sec. 201-1.6.D.1. (Driveways): to increase the 35%
maximum front yard area for driveways or authorized onsite parking to 67%.

6. Approval of variance from Sec. 401-5.11.C. (Horizontal Street Alignment): to
reduce the minimum horizontal street curve radius for a local street from 81-feet to
50-feet.

Section 3. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is
hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

Section 4. The changes in zoning classification is to be noted on the Official
Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as
soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance. The Official Zoning
Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note

specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and

ORD 2025-17 Page 4 of 7



Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance. Until the changes are
indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the
Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of
Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy
between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia
approved by the Mayor and Council.

Section 5. (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council
that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were,
upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional.

(b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the
greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause
or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor
and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.

(c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this
Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or
otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity,
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases,

ORD 2025-17 Page 5 of 7



clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent
allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

Section 6. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby expressly repealed.

Section 7. This Ordinance was adopted on , 2025. The

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

ORD 2025-17 Page 6 of 7



ORDAINED this day of

ATTEST:

Melisa Arnold, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM.

John J. Crowley, City Attorney
Powell & Crowley, LLP

ORD 2025-17

, 2025.

Barbara Bender, Mayor

Tod Warner, Mayor Pro Tem

Cristy Lenski, Council Member

Gretchen Schulz, Council Member

Kerry Hetherington, Council Member

Norman Carter, Council Member

Page 7 of 7



STATE OF GEORGIA

CITY OF SNELLVILLE

ORDINANCE 2025-17

AN ORDINANCE TO DENY THE APPLICATION AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING
MAP FROM BG (GENERAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT TO R-TH (TOWNHOUSE
RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT FOR A 108-UNIT SINGLE-FAMILY (ATTACHED)
TOWNHOUSE DEVELOPMENT WITH A GROSS DENSITY OF 7.20 UNITS PER
ACRE ON 15.01+ ACRES SITUATED ALONG TREE LANE AND ADDITIONAL

RELATED VARIANCES.
CASE NUMBER:

APPLICANT/PROPERTY OWNER:

LOCATION:

TAX PARCEL:

VARIANCES REQUESTED:

ORD 2025-17

#RZ 25-05

DeThomas Investments, LLC (Applicant)
Tree Lane Development, LLC (Owner)
Tree Lane behind 12 Stone Church
R5056 003

1.Variance from Sec. 401

3.4.B. (Vehicular Access): to eliminate the
vehicular access requirement to the
undeveloped 15+ acre adjoining parcel to
the north (Parcel 5056 004).

2.Variance from Sec. 401-

5.3.C. (Local Streets and Minor Arterials or
Collectors): to allow a hammerhead street
termination in lieu of a cul-de-sac
turnaround for “deadend” Street “B”.

3.Variance from Sec. 202 6.6. (Dimensional
Standards — Site Setback): to waive the mini
mum 50-feet site setback (along

streets) and waive the minimum 40-

feet site setback (not along streets).

4.Variance from Sec. 201-2.6. (Townhome

Building Type): to allow front-entry
townhomes for units 73-92.

Page 1 of 5



5.Variance from Sec. 202-6.9.F. (R-

TH Design Standards): to allow

front-entry townhomes for units 73-92.
6.Variance from Sec. 201-1.6.D.1.
(Driveways): to increase the 35% maximum
front yard area for driveways or authorized
onsite parking to 67%.

7.Variance from Sec. 401-5.11.C.
(Horizontal Street Alignment): to reduce the

minimum horizontal street curve radius for a
local street from 81-feet to 50-feet.

DEVELOPMENT/PROJECT: Tree Lane Townhomes

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Snellville, Georgia is the Mayor
and Council thereof; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Mayor and Council on August
25, 2025.

WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Snellville, Georgia,
will be positively impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance; therefore:

IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE
CITY OF SNELLVILLE, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:

Section 1. For reasons stated in the public hearing, the council has made the
following decision to deny the zoning amendment and the accompanying variances
requested stated herein.

Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is
hereby incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

Section 3. The changes in zoning classification is to be noted on the Official

Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia as approved by the Mayor and Council as

ORD 2025-17 Page 2 of 5



soon as reasonably possible following the adoption of this Ordinance. The Official Zoning
Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, shall also be amended with an editorial note
specifying the date these Snellville zoning amendments were approved by the Mayor and
Council and specifying the parcels affected by this Ordinance. Until the changes are
indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia, as approved by the
Mayor and Council, this Ordinance shall govern over Official Zoning Map of the City of
Snellville, Georgia approved by the Mayor and Council to the extent of any discrepancy
between this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map of the City of Snellville, Georgia
approved by the Mayor and Council.

Section 4. (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council
that all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were,
upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and
constitutional.

(b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the
greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or
phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause
or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor
and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph,
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.

(c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this
Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent

ORD 2025-17 Page 3 of 5



jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity,
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not
render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases,
clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest extent
allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the
Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.

Section 5. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby expressly repealed.

Section 6. This Ordinance was adopted on , 2025. The

effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise stated herein.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

ORD 2025-17 Page 4 of 5



ORDAINED this day of

ATTEST:

Melisa Arnold, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM.

John J. Crowley, City Attorney
Powell & Crowley, LLP

ORD 2025-17

, 2025.

Barbara Bender, Mayor

Tod Warner, Mayor Pro Tem

Cristy Lenski, Council Member

Gretchen Schulz, Council Member

Kerry Hetherington, Council Member

Norman Carter, Council Member

Page 5 of 5



Agenda Item Summary

Date: August |1, 2025

Prepared by: Matthew Pepper

Agenda item: Consideration and Action on the Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Subrecipient
Agreement between Gwinnett County and the City of Snellville for the construction of the
Community Center at T.W. Briscoe Park.

Background: Through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program,
the City received an additional award from Gwinnett County in the amount of

$247,605.86. These are reprogrammed funds from the original FFY2024 award. Upon
approval of the agreement, the City will be able to submit for reimbursement.

Once Gwinnett County receives the FFY2025 funding from the federal government, the
City will execute another subrecipient agreement. Currently, the proposed amount the
City will receive from the FFY 2025 program is $1,072,352.

Between the two (2) years, the total award the City will receive for this project is

$1,319,958. The City will use these funds to pay for the construction of the Community
Center at T.W. Briscoe Park.

Financial Impact: The CDBG funds will help pay for approximately | 1% of the budgeted
construction costs for the Community Center at T.W. Briscoe Park.

Recommendation: Approval of the FFY2024 Subrecipient Agreement with Gwinnett County.

Action requested: VOTE to approve the FFY2024 Subrecipient Agreement with Gwinnett
County.

Attachments: FFY2024 Subrecipient Agreement

City of Snellville 2342 Oak Road Snellville, GA 30078 770.985.3500 www.snellville.org



STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF GWINNETT

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT FOR USE OF
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS (CDBG)
PUBLIC FACILITY

Between

GWINNETT COUNTY and
City of Snellville

Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Funds



HUD GRANT NO:
GWINNETT COUNTY AGREEMENT NO.: AD-CD-24-34

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT FOR USE OF
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUNDS
CFDA #14.218
BETWEEN
GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA
AND
City of Snellville

2342 Oak Road
Snellville, GA 30078

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on the 1st day of January 2024, by and between Gwinnett County, a
political subdivision of the State of Georgia acting by and through its duly elected Board of Commissioners,
hereinafter referred to as the "County’, and City of Snellville a CDBG subrecipient organization (either a
participating municipality in the Gwinnett County Urban County CDBG Program, a quasi-local government
agency, a local housing authority, or a private non-profit organization), hereinafter referred to as the
"Subrecipient,” located within the confines of the Gwinnett County, Georgia, and/or serving CDBG-eligible
residents of Gwinnett County; The approval of the award of CDBG funds included in this Agreement by the
County occurred on the 02/06/2024 and represents a subaward of federal funds, as defined in 2 CFR 200.92.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Gwinnett County has received an FFY 2024 Community Development Block Grant,
hereinafter referred to as "CDBG" under Title | of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as
amended, to carry out various housing and community development activities in its unincorporated
areas and in municipalities participating in the County CDBG Program; and

WHEREAS, Two Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Six Hundred Five Dollars and Eighty-Six Cents ($247,605.86),
from FFY 2024 CDBG funds has been awarded to the Subrecipient; and

WHEREAS, the Subrecipient agrees to assume certain responsibilities for the implementation of its CDBG
assisted activities, and certifies that it will comply with the applicable certifications contained in Exhibit 1; with
the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit 2; with any amendments to this Agreement, included as Exhibit 3; with
the Lease Agreement requirements included as Exhibit 4, if applicable; and, with the property use requirements
included as Exhibit 5, if applicable; and with the applicable and non-applicable regulations included in Exhibit 6.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereunto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Use of Funds - The Subrecipient shall expend all or any part of its CDBG allocation only on those activities
contained in the Scope of Services of this Agreement, which activities the Gwinnett County Housing and
Community Development Division shall determine to be eligible for CDBG funds, and shall notify the
Subrecipient in writing, via this Agreement and/or subsequent amendments to this Agreement, of such
determination of eligibility. Such CDBG funds provided through this Agreement must be fully expended
not later than 12/31/2028.

2. A.  Uniform Administrative Requirements - The Uniform Administrative Requirements, as promulgated
in 24 CFR Chapter V [Subpart J] at 570.502 and in all sections of 2 CFR 200, shall apply to all
activities undertaken by the Subrecipient with CDBG assistance provided via this Agreement and any




subsequent amendments. Special attention should be paid to 2 CFR 200, as it supersedes and
streamlines into one document the requirements previously contained in OMB Circulars A-21, A-50,
A-87, A-102, A-110, A-122, A-133, and in 24 CFR 84 and 24 CFR 85. The requirements in 2 CFR 200
applies to all federal funds award by the County after December 26, 2014, which includes all FFY
2020 CDBG funds awarded through this Agreement.

B.  Other Program Requirements - The Subrecipient shall comply with all the requirements of 24 CFR
Chapter V [Subpart K] at 570.600 - 570.614, as applicable to the Subrecipient's activity(s).

3. Procurement - The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the procurement of all supplies, equipment,
services, and construction necessary for the implementation of its activity(s). Procurement shall be
carried out in accordance with 2 CFR 200 Part 200.317 - 200.326, the procurement requirements of the
Subrecipient, and all provisions of the CDBG Regulations [24 CFR Part 570].

The governing board of the Subrecipient shall formally adopt written procurement procedures which are
at least as restrictive as those required in the aforementioned regulations [2 CFR 200, as applicable, and
24 CFR 570] and shall provide a copy of said procurement procedures and evidence of governing board
adoption to the County at the time that this Subrecipient Agreement shall be returned to the County for
signature by the Chairman of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners.

The Subrecipient shall prepare or cause to be prepared, all advertisements, negotiations, notices, and
documents; enter into all contracts; and conduct all meetings, conferences, and interviews as necessary
to ensure compliance with the described procurement requirements.

4. Property Acquisition and Relocation Services - The Subrecipient shall be responsible for carrying out the
acquisition of all real property necessary for the implementation of the activity(s), if applicable. The
Subrecipient shall conduct all such acquisitions in its name and shall hold title to all properties purchased,
[except in such cases as with long term leases (minimum term of 15 years)]. Lease requirements are
addressed in Section 18 of this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the preparation of
all notices, appraisals, and documentation required in conducting acquisitions under the latest applicable
regulations of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Act of 1970 and the
CDBG Program. The Subrecipient shall also be responsible for providing all relocation notices,
counseling, and services required by said regulations. Should the Subrecipient find it necessary to change
the use of or dispose of the property acquired with CDBG funding; the requirements of 24 CFR Part
570.505 governing change of use and property disposition shall apply. Such a change in use may also
require an amendment to this Agreement, including changes in Exhibits 2, 3, 4, 5, or 6.

5. "Force Account” Work - The Subrecipient (limited to participating municipalities) may undertake public
facility construction or renovation activities using municipal labor and equipment. Eligible costs of labor
and equipment may be reimbursed by the County using CDBG funds, based upon submission of a proper
and acceptable invoice(s) and documentation of all costs - as prescribed by the County.

6. Record Keeping/Reporting

A. Financial Record Keeping

The Subrecipient shall maintain records of the expenditure of all CDBG funds it receives, such records
to be maintained in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and 24 CFR 570, as applicable. All records shall be
made available, upon County request, for inspection(s) and audit(s) by the County or its
representatives. If a financial audit(s) determines that the Subrecipient has improperly expended
CDBG funds, resulting in the disallowance of such expenditures by the County or by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, the County reserves the right to recover from the



9.

10.

Subrecipient other non-CDBG monies to fund such disallowed CDBG expenditures. Audit procedures
for the Gwinnett County CDBG Program are specified in Section 19 of this Agreement

B. Programmatic Record-Keeping/Reporting

For limited clientele (including “Direct Service” and “Presumed Benefit”) activities, the Subrecipient
shall provide, every month, sufficient information to the County on services carried out for all persons
served and on CDBG-eligible persons served by activities receiving CDBG assistance under this
Agreement. The purpose of the monthly reporting is to enable the County to prepare and submit
periodic and annual reports to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. These
Subrecipient prepared reports shall be submitted in a format provided by the County [See Exhibit 2, if
applicable to this Agreement] and at a time no later than the 10th calendar day of each month of each
year until all CDBG funds for the activity(s) shall be fully expended, plus five years. The five year
reporting period should not be confused with the "continued use" provisions of this agreement, as
specified in Exhibit 2, "Scope of Services." The County shall provide reporting forms and technical
assistance to the Subrecipient on the procedures to be followed to collect and report these
programmatic data.

Subrecipient's Obligation - The Subrecipient shall be responsible for carrying out its actions in accordance
with the certifications contained in Exhibit 1 of this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall take all necessary
actions to comply with the requirements of the certifications/assurances in Exhibit 1, and to comply with
any requests by the County in this connection; it is understood that the County has a responsibility to the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for ensuring compliance with such requirements.
The Subrecipient will also promptly notify the County of any changes in the scope or character of the
activity(s) assisted through this Agreement.

'Hold Harmless" - The Subrecipient does hereby agree to release, indemnify, and hold harmless the
County, its employees and agents from and against all costs, expenses, claims, suits, or judgments
arising from or growing out of any injuries, loss or damage sustained by any person or corporation,
including employees of Subrecipient and property of Subrecipient, which are caused by or sustained in
connection with the tasks carried out by the Subrecipient under this Agreement.

Funding - The County agrees to provide the Subrecipient with CDBG funds in such amounts as agreed
upon in this Agreement to enable the Subrecipient to carry out its CDBG-eligible activity(s). It is
understood that the County shall be held accountable to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the lawful expenditure of CDBG funds under this Agreement. Therefore, the County shall
make no reimbursement of CDBG funds to the Subrecipient and draw no funds from HUD/U.S. Treasury
on behalf of a Subrecipient activity(s), before receiving proper invoice(s) and copies of supporting
documentation from the Subrecipient for the expenses incurred, to ensure that the Subrecipient has
complied with all applicable regulations and requirements.

Environmental Clearance - The County shall be responsible for carrying out environmental reviews and
clearances on all activities. The Subrecipient shall be responsible for providing necessary information,
promptly, to the County to accomplish this task.

Funding provided through this agreement is "conditionally approved" subject to the completion of the
Environmental Review Process by the County. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, the
parties hereto agree and acknowledge that this Agreement does not constitute a commitment of funds or
site approval and that such commitment of funds or approval may occur only upon satisfactory
completion of environmental review and receipt by the County of a release of funds from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development under 24 CFR Part 58. The parties further agree that the
provision of any funds to projects/activities included in this Agreement is conditional based on the



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

County's determination to proceed with, modify or cancel the projects/activities based on the results of a
subsequent environmental review.

The Subrecipient may not obligate or expend any funds provided through this Agreement until the County
provides to the Subrecipient a “Notice to Proceed," which shall represent, in part, the completion of the
environmental review process, and the Release of Funds by HUD for the projects/activities contained in
this Agreement.

Wage Rates - The County shall be responsible for the preparation of all requests for wage rate
determinations on CDBG activities, on behalf of the Subrecipient. The Subrecipient shall notify the County
before initiating any activity, including advertising for contractual services, which will include costs likely
to be subject to the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act and its implementing regulations. The County will
provide technical assistance to the Subrecipient to ensure compliance with these requirements.

Technical Assistance - The County agrees to provide technical assistance to the Subrecipient in the form
of oral or written guidance and on-site assistance regarding CDBG procedures and project management.
Technical assistance is provided to the Subrecipient as requested and at other times at the initiative of
the County, or when the County provides new or updated CDBG Program information to the Subrecipient.

Review Authority - The County shall have the authority to review all procedures and all materials, notices,
documents, etc., prepared by the Subrecipient in implementation of this Agreement. The Subrecipient
agrees to provide all information required by any person authorized by the County to request such
information to review the same.

Agreement Suspension and Termination - In accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200.338 — 200.342,
suspension or termination of this Agreement may occur if the Subrecipient materially fails to comply with
any term of this Agreement. The Agreement may terminate for convenience in accordance with 2 CFR
200.338 — 200.342. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by either party, hereto, by
giving thirty (30) calendar days written notice of such termination. However, CDBG funds allocated to the
Subrecipient under this Agreement may not be obligated or expended by the Subrecipient following such
date of termination. Any funds allocated to the Subrecipient under this Agreement, which remain
unobligated or unspent upon such date of termination, shall automatically revert to the County.

Agreement Amendment(s) - This Agreement may be modified or amended by mutual agreement of the
parties; however, no waiver, modification or amendment of any terms, conditions or provisions of this
agreement will be valid, or of any force or effect, unless made in writing, approved by the respective
parties' governing bodies and properly executed by the authorized representatives of the parties. All
amendments to this Agreement shall be made a part of the Agreement by inclusion in Exhibit 3, which is
attached at the time of any amendment(s). If the Subrecipient seeks an amendment to this agreement,
the request for such an amendment shall be submitted in written form to the Gwinnett County Housing
and Community Development Division in a format prescribed by the Housing and Community
Development Division. If an amendment to the Gwinnett County Consolidated Plan is required, the
Subrecipient shall be informed of such requirement and the steps required to effectuate such a
Consolidated Plan amendment.

Effective Date and Termination Date - The effective date of this Agreement is the date specified on page 1
of this Agreement. The termination date of this Agreement is 12/31/2028.

Program Income - If the Subrecipient generates any program income as a result of the expenditure of
CDBG funds, the provisions of 2 CFR 200.307 and 24 CFR 570.504(c) shall apply, as well as the following
specific stipulations:




18.

A. The Subrecipient acknowledges, by the executing this Agreement, that it must notify the County of the
receipt of any program income during the calendar month that such program income is generated.

B. Any such program income must be paid to the County within seven calendar days following the end
of the month in which the program income is generated. Such payment to the County must include
any interest or other earnings generated from the program income during the time the program
income was in the possession of the Subrecipient.

C. The Subrecipient further acknowledges, by executing this Agreement, that the County has the
responsibility for monitoring and reporting to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) on the generation of any such program income. The Subrecipient acknowledges its
responsibility to the County to maintain appropriate record-keeping and report on the generation and
receipt of such program income.

D. In the event of a closeout or change in the status of the Subrecipient, any program income that is on
hand or received after the closeout or change in status shall be paid to the County within thirty (30)
calendar days of the official date of the closeout or change in status. The County agrees to notify the
Subrecipient in writing, should closeout or change in the status of the Subrecipient occur as a result of
changes in CDBG Program statutes, regulations, or instructions.

Real Property - The Subrecipient shall comply with the following standards contained in 2 CFR 200.310 -
200.311 for all activities involving real property. The following standards shall also apply to real property
(within the control of the Subrecipient) acquired or improved, in whole or in part, using CDBG funds. The
standards are:

A. The Subrecipient shall inform the County, in writing, at least thirty (30) calendar days before any
modification or change in the use of the real property from that specified in this Agreement, at the
time of acquisition or improvements, including disposition;

Paragraph 18.b. is modified from prior year Subrecipient Agreements, per HUD suggested language
offered during on-site monitoring of another Urban County in the Atlanta region in August 2005.

B. Change in Real Property Status
1. Sale of Property

The Subrecipient may sell the property acquired or improved with CDBG assistance at any time. If
the Subrecipient sells the property or otherwise transfers ownership (title) to another entity that
continues to use the property for an activity that meets a CDBG National Objective and is an
eligible CDBG activity, the County will not require the Subrecipient to repay funds to the County's
CDBG Program. If the Subrecipient sells the property or transfers ownership (title) to another
entity that does not continue to use the property for an activity that meets a CDBG National
Objective and is an eligible CDBG activity, the County will require the Subrecipient to repay to the
County’s CDBG Program the fair market value of the property, less any portion of the value
attributable to expenditures of non-CDBG funds for the acquisition of and improvements to the
property. However, before such sale of CDBG-assisted property, the Subrecipient shall notify the
County in writing of its intent to sell the property and shall determine the fair market value of the
property by obtaining at least one appraisal and at least one review appraisal of the property
performed by separate appraisers who are licensed by the State of Georgia.

If the Subrecipient sells or transfers ownership (title) to the property at a point in time five (5)
years after the County receives its last increment of CDBG funding, the County will not require the
Subrecipient to reimburse the County's CDBG Program.



2. Change in Use of Property

The Subrecipient may change the use of the property at any time provided it complies with the
following stipulations:

(a) If the Subrecipient proposes to change the use of the property to an activity that meets a
CDBG National Objective and is an eligible CDBG activity, the County will not require the
Subrecipient to repay funds to the County’s CDBG Program. However, before such change
in use, the Subrecipient shall notify the County in writing of its intent to change the use of
the property to permit the County to notify affected citizens with reasonable notice of and
opportunity to comment on the proposed change in use, as required by 24 CFR 570.505.

(b) If the Subrecipient proposes to change the use of the property to an activity that does not
meet a CDBG National Objective or is not an eligible CDBG activity, the County will require
the Subrecipient to reimburse the County’'s CDBG Program the fair market value of the
property as adjusted for non-CDBG funds. However, before such change in use, the
Subrecipient shall notify the County in writing of its intent to change the use of the
property and shall determine the fair market value of the property by obtaining at least one
appraisal and at least one review appraisal of the property performed by separate
appraisers who are licensed by the State of Georgia.

(c) If the Subrecipient proposes to change the use of the property at a point-in-time five (5)
years after the County receives its last increment of CDBG funding, the County will not
require the Subrecipient to reimburse the CDBG Program.

C. Any program income generated from the disposition or transfer of property before or after the
closeout, change of status, or termination of the Subrecipient Agreement between the County and the
Subrecipient shall be repaid to the County at the time of disposition or transfer of the property.

D. A lease agreement, in a format prescribed by the County, must be executed between the County and
the Subrecipient for any County CDBG-assisted Subrecipient activity, which is carried out wholly, or in
part, on County-owned real property. The lease agreement shall be included in this Subrecipient
Agreement as Exhibit 4. Said lease agreement must contain, at a minimum, the following items, and
other items determined by the County to be applied to the specific lease:

(1) The beginning and end dates of the lease [at least five (5) years to be eligible for CDBG funding
assistance).

(2) Identification of the parties to the lease; i.e., the Lessor shall be the County, and the Lessee shall
be the Subrecipient.

(3) Identification of the precise land parcel(s) and/or structure(s), which constitute the subject of the
lease.

(4) Identification of the CDBG-eligible use of the real property(s) and/or structure(s).

(5) A termination statement acceptable to the County and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

(6) The lease must contain a regulatory compliance statement indicating that the terms are in
conformance with all applicable Federal, State, and Gwinnett County rules, regulations, and
requirements.



(7) The lease must contain maintenance of property statement indicating that the property(s) and/or
structure(s), which is the subject of the lease agreement, will be maintained in conformance with
all applicable Federal, State, and Gwinnett County rules, regulations, and requirements.

(8) The lease must contain a non-assignability clause indicating that the lease may not be assigned
to any other party(s) without prior written approval by the County and subsequent execution of an
amendment to the lease and this Subrecipient Agreement.

(9) The lease must contain an insurance certification statement indicating that the lessee will
maintain appropriate types of insurance, as specified in the lease, on the property(s) and/or
structure(s), which is the subject of the lease.

(10) The lease must contain an indemnification statement, as specified by the County.

(11) The lease must contain a statement as to governance, performance, and enforcement under the
laws of the State of Georgia.

(12) The lease may contain special conditions unique to the specific lessor/lessee circumstances or
unique to the specific property(s) and/or structure(s).

E. If the Subrecipient wishes to carry out its CDBG-assisted activity on real property(s) and/or in a
structure(s) which is owned neither by the Subrecipient nor by the County, a long-term lease
[minimum fifteen (15) years] must be executed which meets the standards specified in Section 18(d),
above. Prior to the execution of the said lease, the County must approve the form and content of the
Lease Agreement to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

F. Private non-profit Subrecipient organizations must also execute a real property use document(s) with
the County. Such document(s) provides the County with a mechanism to ensure its fiduciary interest
in the property(s) and/or structure(s) for which the County provided CDBG funds to the private non-
profit organization via this Agreement.

In the event of the dissolution or change in status of the private non-profit organization or change in
scope of the CDBG-assisted activity - resulting in the CDBG-assisted activity becoming an ineligible
CDBG activity, as defined by CDBG rules and regulations applicable at the time of such dissolution or
change in status - the County shall, at its option, exercise its right to obtain its appropriate share of
the value of the CDBG-assisted property, as permitted by the rules and regulations governing the
CDBG program at the time of such an occurrence, and as specified by this Agreement. The real
property use documents referenced, herein, shall be appended to this Agreement and shall constitute
Exhibit 5.

19. Audits
The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the requirements of:

A. The "Government Auditing Standards, Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs,
Activities, and Functions," 1994 Revision or its successors, ['The Yellow Book'] issued by the
Comptroller General, United States General Accounting Office.

B. The "Single Audit Act of 1984" [P.L. 98-502], as amended by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996
[P.L. 104-156], requires that States, local governments and nonprofit organizations which receive
federal funds must have audits performed in conformance with the Single Audit Act, as amended, and
with implementing Circulars issued by the Office of Management and Budget. Subrecipient entities



must have their audits prepared consistent with the requirements of 2 CFR 200.500 — 200.513. If a
Subrecipient’s expenditures trigger the requirement to prepare a Single Audit, three (3) copies of the
audit must be submitted to the County not later than six (6) months following the final date of the
Subrecipient’s fiscal year that is the subject of the audit.

If the minimum monetary amounts requiring the preparation of the Single Audit, as stated in 2 CFR
200.501, are not be triggered, the Subrecipient shall provide to the Gwinnett County Housing and
Community Development Division Office three (3) copies of its normal independent auditor's report,
as soon as practicable following the close of its fiscal year, but not later than nine (9) months
following the close of each such year. The independent audit, which addresses the Community
Development Block Grant funds received/expended by the Subrecipient shall conform to the Gwinnett
County Audit Standards, described in Section 19.C. of this Agreement.

. Gwinnett County Audit Standards for CDBG Subrecipients Where Single Audit Act Requirements Do
Not Apply

Because Gwinnett County is responsible for any grant funds provided to all Subrecipients, any
organizations or cities which expend a total of more than $0.00, but less than $500,000.00 of CDBG
funds, in any fiscal year from this agreement must have an independent audit of those funds
performed annually or shall follow procedures specified, herein, as if all funds were subject to the
requirements below.

(1) A statement by the executive financial official of the organization or city that they have read
and adhered to the requirements of 2 CFR 200.500 - 200.520 and have met those
requirements as applicable to their organization. This statement should be in written form
and submitted to Gwinnett County within thirty (30) calendar days following the end of the
fiscal year of the Subrecipient;

(2) All requests to the County for CDBG reimbursements shall be approved by an individual at
least one level above the person who prepares the reimbursement request. If the
reimbursement request is prepared by the Chief Financial Administrator of the organization,
the request shall be approved by a Chairperson or other designated member of the
organization’s governing board;

(3) For all CDBG requests for reimbursement, the invoice and accompanying copies of checks
and other supporting documentation shall be submitted with the reimbursement request;

(4) Gwinnett County shall periodically perform program reviews of Subrecipient financial records
and systems not less often than one time during the Subrecipient's fiscal year, including the
review of Subrecipient records, at least annually, at the offices of the Subrecipient. This
review should include procedures to request and verify documentation of all expenditures
requested in a single reimbursement request;

(5) Any appropriate corrective action for instances of noncompliance as a result of these
program reviews will be taken within six (6) months of notification by Gwinnett County that
these reportable conditions exist;

(6) At the end of each fiscal year, the Subrecipient shall submit to Gwinnett County a financial
statement prepared from the Subrecipient's financial records that presents the revenues
received from the Gwinnett County Community Development Block Grant Program and the
expenditures for which these funds were used; and



The above procedures will provide the County's independent auditor with sufficient
information to determine whether the Subrecipient has materially complied with the
applicable laws and regulations, as they govern their programs. If any of the above
procedures provide less information than is already required by this agreement, then the
applicable procedures already stated in the agreement shall govern the Subrecipient's
responsibilities to Gwinnett County.

D. The Subrecipient agrees to have its Single Audit or other independent audit performed, in
conformance with these Federally required and Gwinnett County stipulations, at its own cost and not
payable with CDBG funds.

E. The Subrecipient further agrees to send a copy of its Single Audit Report or independent auditor's
report to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community Development Division as soon as practicable
following the close of the Subrecipient's fiscal year, but in no case shall the audit report be submitted
to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community Development Division later than nine (9) months
following the close of the Subrecipient’s fiscal year which is the subject of the audit in question.

F. The County reserves the right to recover, from non-CDBG sources of the Subrecipient, any CDBG
expenses of the Subrecipient, which are questioned or disallowed by the Subrecipient's independent
auditor or by Gwinnett County's independent auditor as a part of their review of the Subrecipient's
audit.

The Subrecipient shall comply with all the applicable requirements of 2 CFR 200 and 24 CFR 570 [CDBG
Regulations], as applicable. These documents are incorporated as a part of this Agreement by reference,
herein. The referenced documents are also available from the Gwinnett County Housing and Community
Development Division upon request.

20. Faith-based activities

A. Organizations that are religious or faith-based are eligible, on the same basis as any other
organization, to participate in the CDBG program. Neither the Federal government nor a State or local
government receiving funds under CDBG programs shall discriminate against an organization on the
basis of the organization’s religious character or affiliation.

B. Organizations that are funded under the CDBG program may not engage in inherently religious
activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization, as part of the programs or services
funded under this part. If an organization conducts such activities, the activities must be offered
separately, in time or location, from the programs or services funded under this part, and participation
must be voluntary for the beneficiaries of the HUD-funded programs or services.

C. A religious organization that participates in the CDBG program will retain its independence from
Federal, State, and local governments, and may continue to carry out its mission, including the
definition, practice, and expression of its religious beliefs, provided that it does not use direct CDBG
funds to support any inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or
proselytization. Among other things, faith-based organizations may use space in their facilities to
provide CDBG-funded services, without removing religious art, icons, scriptures, or other religious
symbols. In addition, a CDBG-funded religious organization retains its authority over its internal
governance, and it may retain religious terms in its organization's name, select its board members on
a religious basis, and include religious references in its organization’s mission statements and other
governing documents.



D. An organization that participates in the CDBG program shall not, in providing program assistance,
discriminate against a program beneficiary or prospective program beneficiary on the basis of religion
or religious belief.

E. CDBG funds may not be used for the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of structures to the
extent that those structures are used for inherently religious activities. CDBG funds may be used for
the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of structures only to the extent that those structures are
used for conducting eligible activities under this part. Where a structure is used for both eligible and
inherently religious activities, CDBG funds may not exceed the cost of those portions of the
acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation that are attributable to eligible activities in accordance with
the cost accounting requirements applicable to CDBG funds in this part. Sanctuaries, chapels, or
other rooms that a CDBG-funded religious congregation uses as its principal place of worship,
however, are ineligible for CDBG-funded improvements. Disposition of real property after the term of
the grant, or any change in use of the property during the term of the grant, is subject to government-
wide regulations governing real property disposition (see 24 CFR parts 84 and 85). If a State or local
government voluntarily contributes its own funds to supplement federally funded activities, the State
or local government has the option to segregate the Federal funds or commingle them. However, if
the funds are commingled, this section applies to all of the commingled funds.

F. Inaccordance with 24 CFR 570.607 Employment and contracting opportunities, as amended by 68 FR
56404, Page 53405, to the extent that they are otherwise applicable, the Subrecipient shall comply
with: Executive Order 11246, as amended by Executive Orders 11375, 11478, 12086, and 12107 (3
CFR 1964-1965 Comp. p. 339); 3 CFR, 1966-1970 Comp., p. 684; 3 CFR, 1966-1970., p. 803; 3 CFR,
1978 Comp., p. 230; 3 CFR, 1978 Comp., p. 264 (Equal Employment Opportunity), and Executive Order
13279 (Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations), 67 FR 77141, 3
CFR, 2002 Comp., p. 258; and the implementing regulations at 41 CFR chapter 60; and (b) Section 3 of
the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1707(u) and implementing regulations at
24 CFR part 135.

21. Recognition of CDBG Program Funding from Gwinnett County

A. The Subrecipient shall ensure that the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners & Housing and
Community Development Division is provided the proper recognition, as follows.

(1)  CDBG Public Facilities, Capital Public Services Projects, Other Funded Activities

a.  Subrecipient will affix proper signage in a prominent location inside/outside of the
administrative offices and outside of all project sites, which signage will include
language recognizing the role of Gwinnett County and its CDBG funds in the acquisition,
and/or construction and/or rehabilitation of the public facility or of the purchase of
capital equipment, or other CDBG funded activities.

b.  Subrecipient will have as its contact point the Gwinnett County Housing and
Community Development Division, to arrange any events related to project
groundbreaking, dedications, or similar ceremonies for activities receiving Gwinnett
County CDBG Program funds; and, the Subrecipient agrees to provide the Gwinnett
County CDBG Program with adequate lead time to permit proper planning and
scheduling for such events. Event notifications to the Gwinnett County Housing and
Community Development Division should occur not less than six (6) weeks before the
date of any event to permit adequate event planning and scheduling.

c.  Subrecipient agrees to contact the Gwinnett County Housing and Community
Development Division to arrange such events, rather than contacting the Gwinnett



County Board of Commissioners, directly, individually or collectively, to initiate or
arrange such events. This procedure is being used by the Gwinnett County government
to avoid scheduling conflicts and to provide a consistent method of planning all such
events.

d.  Subrecipient agrees to schedule such events on days other than regular meeting days
[Tuesdays] of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners or to schedule such events
late in the afternoon on Tuesday meeting days of the Gwinnett County Board of
Commissioners.

e.  Subrecipient agrees that all reports, media releases, media stories, media articles,
brochures, newsletters, advertisements, and other published materials shall contain
statements that provide adequate recognition of the financial support provided by the
Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners, through Gwinnett County CDBG Program
funds.

22. Conflict of Interest

In accordance to 2 CFR 200.112 and 24 CFR 570.611, no person who is an employee, agent, consultant,
officer, or elected or appointed official of a Subrecipient who exercise or have exercised any functions or
responsibilities with respect to CDBG activities assisted under this Agreement, or who are in a position to
participate in a decision making process or gain inside information about such activities, may obtain a
financial interest or benefit from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have a financial interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement for a CDBG-assisted activity, or with the proceeds of the CDBG-assisted
activity, either for themselves or those with whom they have business or immediate family ties, during
their tenure or for one year thereafter.

Subrecipients will maintain a written code of standards of conduct governing the performance of their
employees engaged in the award and administration of contracts. No employee, officer, or agent of the
Subrecipient shall participate in the selection, or in the award or administration of a contract supported
by Federal funds awarded through this Agreement if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be
involved.

Subrecipients must be mindful of any relationship employees, officials, board members, consultants, or
volunteers may have with Gwinnett County employees, board members, consultants, or elected officials,
where a real or apparent conflict of interest that might be realized or perceived concerning a CDBG
funded project or activity awarded through this Agreement. All relationships between representatives of
the Subrecipient and Gwinnett County must be transparent and must comply with Gwinnett County’s
Code of Ethics. This Code was developed by the County to establish ethical standards of conduct for all
such officials and employees by setting forth those acts or actions that are compatible with the best
interests of the County. The Code directs disclosure by such officials and employees of private financial
or other interests in matters affecting the County and by directing disclosure of their business
relationships. Subrecipient officials who carefully follow the Gwinnett County Code of Ethics and the
language of this Section are less likely to have conducted themselves or participated in activities that can
be construed as real or apparent conflicts of interest.

If any situation arguably falls within the conflicts prohibited by 2 CFR 200.112 or 24 CFR 570.611 the
Subrecipient should immediately contact the Gwinnett County Housing and Community Development
Division for guidance. Copies of the Gwinnett County Code of Ethics are available from the Gwinnett
County Housing and Community Development Division.

23. Investment Efficiency Reporting




The Gwinnett County Housing and Community Development Division is pioneering a process to permit
the County and its Subrecipients to provide local elected officials and program managers with
meaningful information on the actual value returned from the investment of CDBG Program funds.
Vendors and Subrecipients using CDBG funds must report on the number and value of jobs created or
retained, and Subrecipients must report any private or other governmental funds that are invested as a
direct result of the expenditure of CDBG funds.

24. Adhering to Gwinnett County’s Vision/Mission/Values: The Subrecipient recognizes the Prime Recipient’s
desire to instill Gwinnett County's vision, mission, and values into all grant funded projects and
partnerships. The Subrecipient agrees to foster these values through the provision of superior services.

a. Vision: Gwinnett is the preferred community where everyone thrives!
b. Mission: Gwinnett proudly supports our vibrantly connected community by delivering
superior services.

c. Values:
I. Integrity: We believe in being honest, building trust, and having strong moral
principles.
ii. Accountability: We believe in stewardship, transparency, and sustainability.
iii.  Equity: We believe in fairness and respect for all.

iv. Inclusivity: We believe in engaging, embracing, and unifying our communities.
v. Innovation: We believe in continual adaptation of technology, process, and
experience.

The new mandatory reporting process and form is provided in Exhibit 2.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereunto have affixed their signatures the year and dates specified below

and the Official Seal of the Subrecipient has been affixed.

FOR: City of Snellville

FOR: GWINNETT COUNTY

Signature

Matthew Pepper, City Manager

Signature
Russell Royal, Finance Director
Gwinnett County Department of Financial Services

Name / Title

Name / Title

Signature Date

[Impress Corporate Seal Here]

ATTEST:

Signature Date

Signature

Matthew Elder, Division Director,

Gwinnett County Department of Planning and
Development

Name / Title

Signature Date

ATTEST:

Signature

Melissa Arnold, City Clerk

Signature

Tina King, County Clerk, Gwinnett County

Name / Title

Name / Title

Signature Date

Date Approved: City of Snellville Governing Body

Date of Approval

[See Also Attached Exhibit(s)]

Signature Date

Approved by: Gwinnett County Board of
Commissioners
Per Minutes Dated 02/06/2024

Note: No Signatures shall be placed within this document on a date prior to action by the governing board of

the Subrecipient, approving acceptance of these funds, and authorizing execution of this document. The

Resolution of the Governing Board is presented in Exhibit 1.




RESOLUTION OF THEGOVERNING BOARD
Cityof Snellville

WHEREAS, City of Snellville requested Community Development Block Grant [CDBG] Program funding from the
Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners has awarded Two Hundred Forty-Seven

Thousand Six Hundred Five Dollars and Eighty-Six Cents ($247,605.86) from FFY 2024 CDBG Program
funds to City of Snellville for Public Facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Governing Board of does hereby resolve and authorize the following, as a result of an
affirmative majority vote of the Governing Board at a meeting of said Governing Board which was held on

Date of Governing Board Actioh

1. Acceptance of an FFY 2024 Community Development Block Grant [CDBG] Program award Two
Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Six Hundred Five Dollars and Eighty-Six Cents ($247,605.86) from the
Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners to City of Snellville.

2. Authorize the City Manager of the Subrecipient's Governing Board to execute the Community

Development Block Grant [CDBG] Program Subrecipient Agreement used by Gwinnett County to award
the CDBG Program funds to City of Snellville.

Certified as accurate and true;

Signature— Matthew Pepper, City Manager

Signature Date

[IMPRESS CORPORATE SEAL HERE]



EXHIBIT 1

CERTIFICATIONS




EXHIBIT 1
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
GRANTEE CERTIFICATIONS

In accordance with the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, (“the Act”) and with 24
CFR 570 of the Community Development Block Grant regulations, the Subrecipient certifies that:

(a)

(b)

It possesses legal authority to accept and execute a Community Development Block Grant award from
Gwinnett County;

Its governing body has duly adopted or passed, by at least a majority vote, as an official act a resolution,
motion or similar action authorizing the acceptance of this grant for the purposes specified in this
Agreement and directing and authorizing its appropriate personnel to execute and implement this
Agreement and to provide to the County such additional information as may be required;

Provides for and encourages citizen participation, with particular emphasis on participation by persons of
low- and-moderate income who are residents of slum and blighted areas and of areas in which funds are
proposed to be used, and provides for participation of residents in low- and moderate-income
neighborhoods, as defined by the County;

Provides citizens with reasonable and timely access to local meetings, information, and records relating to
the Subrecipient’s use of funds, as specified in this Agreement,

Provides for public hearings to obtain citizen views and to respond to proposals and questions at all stages
of the Housing and Community Development Division, which hearings shall be held after adequate notice, at
times and locations convenient to potential or actual beneficiaries, and with accommodation for persons
with disabilities;

Identifies how the needs of non-English speaking residents will be met in the case of public hearings where
a significant number of non-English speaking residents can be reasonably expected to participate;

The grant will be conducted and administered in compliance with:

1. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Public Law 88-352, 42 U.S.C. Sec. 2000d et seq.); and
2. The Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-20);

It will affirmatively further fair housing;

It will carry out the activities specified in this Agreement consistent with the goals, objectives, and strategies
of the Gwinnett County Consolidated Plan;

It will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted in whole or in part with
funds provided under section 106 of the Act or with amounts resulting from a guarantee under section 108
of the Act by assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and
moderate income, including any fee charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to
such public improvements, unless:

1. Funds received under section 106 of the Act are used to pay the proportion of such fee or assessment
that relates to the capital costs of such public improvements that are financed from revenue sources
other than under Title | of the Act; or



2. For purposes of assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of moderate

income, the grantee certifies to the Secretary that it lacks sufficient funds received under section 106 of
the Act to comply with the requirements of subparagraph (1) above;

(k) Its notification, inspection, testing and abatement procedures concerning lead-based paint will comply with
24 CFR Part 570.608;

(1) It will comply with the acquisition and relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, as required under 24 CFR Part 570.606;

(m)

It has adopted and is enforcing:

A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its jurisdiction
against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; and

A policy of enforcing applicable State and local laws against physically barring entrance to or exit
from a facility or location which is the subject of such non-violent civil rights demonstrations within its
jurisdiction;

(n) To the best of its knowledge and belief:

1.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of it, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the
awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement;

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, it will complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions; and

It will require that the language of paragraph (n) of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all Subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly;

(o) It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.

Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying
the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition,

Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about -

(a) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(b) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(c) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and



(d) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace;

3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a
copy of the statement required by paragraph |,

4, Notifying the employee in the statement required by subparagraph 1 that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will:

(a) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(b) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute
occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) calendar days after such conviction;

5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph
4(b) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of
convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer or other
designee on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has
designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification
number(s) of each affected grant;

6. Taking one of the following actions, within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 4(b), with respect to any employee who is so convicted -

(a) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(b) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law enforcement, or other
appropriate agency;

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs 1,2, 3,4, 5and 6.

8. The site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the specific grant:
Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, state, zip code)
City of Snellville
2342 Oak Road
Snellville, GA30078
Gwinnett County, GA

(p) It will comply with the other provisions of the Act and with other applicable laws.

[CDBG CERTIFICATION SIGNATURE PAGE - PROVIDED ON NEXT PAGE]



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

GRANTEE CERTIFICATIONS

SUBRECIPIENT SIGNATURE PAGE

SIGN:

Signature — Subrecipient Chief Elected Official/Board Chair/Other Authorized Official

Matthew Pepper

Name - Subrecipient Chief Elected Official/Board Chair/Other Authorized Official

City Manager

Title

Signature Date

ATTEST:

Signature of Person Attesting Signature by Subrecipient's Chief Elected Official or Board Chair

Melissa Arnold

Name - Person Attesting Signature by Subrecipient's Chief Elected Official or Board Chair
City Clerk

Title

Date of Attesting Person'’s Signature



APPENDIX TO CDBG CERTIFICATIONS

INSTRUCTIONS CONCERNING LOBBYING AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS:

A. Lobbying Certification - Paragraph n

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

B. Drug-Free Workplace Certification - Paragraph o

1.

By signing and executing this Agreement, the Subrecipient is providing the certification set out in
paragraph (o).

The certification set out in paragraph (0) is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is
placed when the County awards the grant. If it is later determined that the Subrecipient knowingly
rendered a false certification, or otherwise violates the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act,
HUD, in addition to any other remedies available to the Federal Government, may take action
authorized under the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

Workplaces under this Agreement shall be identified in this Agreement. Failure to identify all known
workplaces constitutes a violation of the Subrecipient's drug-free workplace requirements.

Workplace identifications must include the actual address of buildings (or parts of buildings) or other
sites where work under the grant takes place.

If the workplace identified to the County changes during the performance of the grant, the
Subrecipient shall inform the County of the change(s), if it previously identified the workplaces in
question (see paragraph three).

Definitions of terms in the Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment common rule and Drug-Free
Workplace common rule apply to this certification. Subrecipient's attention is called, in particular, to
the following definitions from these rules:

"Controlled substance" means a controlled substance in Schedules | through V of the Controlled
Substances Act (21 U.S.C.812) and as further defined by regulation (21 CFR 1308.11 through
1308.15);

"Conviction" means a finding of guilt (including a plea of nolo contendere) or imposition of sentence, or
both, by any judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine violations of the Federal or
State criminal drug statutes;

"Criminal drug statute" means a Federal or non-Federal criminal statute involving the manufacture,
distribution, dispensing, use, or possession of any controlled substance;

"Employee" means the employee of a Subrecipient directly engaged in the performance of work under
a grant provided through this Agreement, including: (i) All "direct charge" employees; (ii) all "indirect
charge" employees unless their impact or involvement is insignificant to the performance of the grant;
and (iii) temporary personnel and consultants who are directly engaged in the performance of work
under the grant and who are not on the Subrecipient’s payroll. This definition does not include



workers not on the payroll of the Subrecipient (e.g., volunteers, even if used to meet a matching
requirement; consultants or independent contractors not on the Subrecipient’'s payroll; or employees
of subrecipients or subcontractors in covered workplaces).



EXHIBIT 2

SCOPE OF SERVICES




EXHIBIT 2

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The following activities and/or projects shall be carried out by the Subrecipient, under the terms of this
Agreement and its accompanying certifications and reporting requirements:

Agency: City of Snellville

Activity Name: Public Facility: Community Center
Project Number: AD-CD-24-34

CDBG Priority: TBD

CDBG Eligibility Citation: 24 CFR 570.201(c)

HUD Objective: TBD

HUD Outcome: TBD

ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION

The total FFY 2024 CDBG budget for this activity shall not exceed Two Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Six
Hundred Five Dollars and Eighty-Six Cents ($247,605.86). The Subrecipient shall contribute non-CDBG funds for
this activity, if needed, to permit the project to be completed by the termination date. The Subrecipient's
CDBG application listed the total project cost at Two Hundred Forty-Seven Thousand Six Hundred Five
Dollars and Eighty-Six Cents ($247,605.86). The Agreement shall be effective on January 1, 2024 and will
terminate on 12/31/2028, after which date, Gwinnett County reserves the right to recapture any remaining
unexpended CDBG funds.

Beneficiary Requirements

The Subrecipient shall use the CDBG funds and other non-CDBG funds, if needed, to provide Public Facility. Total
persons to be served 3,895 of whom 2,290 [58.79%] are income-eligible as defined by the CDBG Program. At
least 51% of the households must have income that does not exceed the CDBG Maximum Income
Limits applicable at the time the service is provided. Income limits in effect at the time of the preparation
of this agreement are contained within the Monthly Services Report, Page 2, of this Exhibit.



General Requirements

A Monthly Services Report shall be submitted by the 10t calendar day of the month following the initial month of
operation. A copy of the monthly report shall be transmitted or delivered to the Gwinnett County Housing and
Community Development Division Office by the 10™ calendar of each month for all months CDBG Public Service
funds are being utilized (for services provided during the prior month). The Subrecipient may stop submitting
Monthly Service Reports once all Gwinnett County CDBG Public Service funds have been expended,
reimbursement has been requested, and the beneficiary goal listed above have been met. The monthly utilization
forms shall be retained in the Subrecipient’s files and filed with the Gwinnett County Housing and Community
Development Division. The services data must be received from the Subrecipient to permit Gwinnett County to
record services delivered by the Subrecipient into the HUID Integrated Disbursement and Information System, or
any successor or replacement computer system at HUD.

Funds from these grant awards shall only be used to provide services associated with activities identified in this
Scope of Services. No involuntary displacement of persons, businesses, or agencies will occur as a result of this
CDBG assisted activity. Any changes in this agreement shall be requested by the Subrecipient, in writing, and
must be approved by Gwinnett County.

Reimbursement Process

Each request for reimbursement must be submitted to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community
Development Division, which shall review and recommend reimbursement to the Subrecipient by the Gwinnett
County Department of Financial Services.

Each request for reimbursement submitted to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community Development
Division by the Subrecipient shall consist of:

) A letter from your agency requesting reimbursement, identifying the activity and the amount of
reimbursement requested; and

(2) Copies of vendor(s) invoices, your agency’s payment voucher(s) (if used by your agency), and your
agency’s check(s) issued to vendor(s) for expenditures contained in the requests for reimbursement; and

(3) All payments to vendors(s) shall be reviewed and approved, in writing, by an authorized official of the
Subrecipient; and

(4) No reimbursement requests shall be submitted to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community
Development Division without the review and written approval by an authorized official of the
Subrecipient; and

(5) No reimbursement requests shall be submitted to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community
Development Division until the Subrecipient has issued its check(s) payable to the vendor(s) identified in
the requests for reimbursement.

(6) The  Subrecipient  shall maintain  documentation in its files to substantiate all
expenditures/reimbursement requests, and to demonstrate that it has followed its written procurement
procedures [see Item 3, of this Agreement] to obtain the goods and/or services associated with the
completion of the activity identified in this Scope of Services.



GWINNETT COUNTY CDBG INVESTMENT EFFICIENCY REPORTING

When CDBG funds are expended, Subrecipients and their vendors [i.e., contractors, subcontractors, and
architects/engineers] hire or retain employees as a direct result of the expenditure of CDBG funds. Another
important product of the expenditure of CDBG funds is the investment of other governmental or private funds by
the Subrecipients to implement and carry out CDBG-funded projects/activities.

Gwinnett County recognizes that the creation or retention of jobs and the investment of non-CDBG funds are
important contributions to the local economy. In a pilot-test during 2012, the Gwinnett County Housing and
Community Development Division analyzed these data and discovered results that were so dramatic that the
reporting process will now be implemented as a permanent part of the Gwinnett County CDBG Program.

Therefore, effective with any new CDBG funds awarded after 10/1/2012, Subrecipient organizations must report
the numbers and the dollar value of jobs created and/or retained as a direct result of the investment of CDBG
grant funds. The reporting process also captures any non-CDBG funds [government funds or private funds] that
are expended as a direct result of CDBG investments. Reports must be submitted by Subrecipients, by the 10t
calendar day of each month, to the Gwinnett County Housing and Community Development Division. The
Monthly Investment Efficiency Report is contained in this Exhibit.

Reports must be submitted by Subrecipients, by the 10% calendar day of each month, to the Gwinnett County
Housing and Community Development Division. The Monthly Expenditure Report, Monthly Services Report, and
the Monthly Investment Efficiency Report template is contained in this Exhibit.

The information obtained from the monthly Subrecipient reports will be compiled by the Gwinnett County
Housing and Community Development Division and will be reported to local elected officials and managers to
document the impact of CDBG job creation/retention and to catalogue the actual non-CDBG funding leveraged
by the CDBG expenditures.



	Work Session Agenda
	Public Hearing & Regular Business Agenda
	Announcements
	Minutes for Approval
	2025 Millage Rate Information
	1st Reading - RZ 25-05 - Tree Lane
	CDBG Subrecipient Agreement



